
1 
 

BLET REVISION COMMITTEE MEETING 
DOC OSDT 

Apex, NC 
July 9, 2010 

 
 
Bob Yow called the meeting to order at 10:00 a.m. The meeting was held at the Department of 
Correction, Office of Staff Development and Training, Apex, NC. Bob introduced the two 
newest members of the committee:  Louis Ingram, Cabarrus County Sheriff’s Office and Patrick 
O’Toole, High Point Police Department. Carolyn Holland called the roll. 
 
Members Present: 
Nancy Bennett 
Mack Creson 
Louis Ingram 
Patrick O’Toole 
Jeffrey Robinson 
Steve Warren 
 
Bob stated he had received proxies from Kathryn Bryan, Jason Godwin and Wayne Lamm. 
 
Ex-Officio Members Present: 
Mark Dearry, Criminal Justice Standards Division 
Joy Strickland, NC Department of Justice 
 
Staff Present: 
Bob Yow, NC Justice Academy 
Carolyn Holland, NC Justice Academy 
Stacy Holloman, NC Justice Academy 
John Combs, NC Justice Academy 
Chad Thompson, NC Justice Academy 
Pam Pope, Criminal Justice Standards Division 
 
Visitors Present: 
Tracy McPherson, NC Community College System 
Steve Johnson, Commissioner, NC Criminal Justice Education & Training Standards 
      Commission 
 
 
Bob asked for approval or correction of the April 16, 2010 meeting minutes. Jeff Robinson made 
the motion to approve the minutes. Steve Warren seconded. The motion was approved. 
 
Firearms 
 
Bob reminded members that at the last meeting a recommendation was sent to the Education and 
Training Committee deleting shotgun qualification from the BLET Firearms block of instruction. 
The E & T Committee approved the proposal; therefore, BLET Firearms was revised effective 



2 
 

July 1, 2010, removing shotgun training and qualification. The time once devoted to shotgun 
training/qualification is used in more realistic handgun training. Once schools implemented this 
change, some chiefs and sheriffs contacted the schools and expressed their thoughts that shotgun 
training/qualification should be required in BLET. Various school directors have asked the 
Criminal Justice Standards Division staff and NC Justice Academy staff whether, within the 48 
hours of firearms training, they may use any of that time to train in shotguns or other long rifles, 
provided they have already met all Commission requirements concerning handgun 
qualification/training.  
 
Several committee members commented on this issue. Among them Mack Creson expressed his 
concern that firearms is lagging behind other training and that more tactical handgun training is 
needed since this is the area where officers are being hurt and killed.  
 
Steve Johnson commented that the removal of shotgun training occurred because agencies were 
moving away from use of shotguns. He suggested in-service training on shotguns and long guns 
be done. The current firearms lesson plan does state that instructors bring in a variety of weapons 
to familiarize students with safe handling and the shotgun should be included. Steve agreed that 
schools could add additional shotgun training, exceeding mandated hours. 
 
Jeff Robinson made a motion to allow school directors to use some of the 48 hours for firearms 
training as shotgun training or other weapons training, as long as they have met all Commission 
handgun qualification requirements. Nancy Bennett seconded. 
 
Mark Dearry reminded members that discretionary and optional mean the same—the 8 hours of 
optional training would not be tested. This could potentially be an issue when the Commission 
reviews the recommendation. 
 
Mack Creson expressed a concern about the consistency of training if this is allowed. Jeff stated 
that some agencies need the shotgun training and therefore he recommends it be included. Bob 
Yow added that Jason Godwin and Wayne Lamm both supported the intent of Jeff’s motion. 
 
Bob explained that BLET topics can be and are enhanced by some school directors. This is 
permitted as long as schools deliver the Commission-mandated materials; schools can then 
enhance the topics by additional training within the topical area. Such enhancements are not 
endorsed by the Commission.  
 
Chad Thompson stated that schools already have discretion to do shotgun training; there’s just no 
qualification requirement. The lesson plan states that instructors are to demonstrate unloading 
and securing a variety of weapons—this could include shotgun and long guns. The combat 
course could also include shotgun and long guns. 
 
Jeff stated that if he understood what the current curriculum provides—40 hours of 
lecture/training on handguns and 8 hours for combat or other handgun training, with the 
familiarization of shotgun or long guns and allowance of combat course design to include 
shotgun/long gun training—he sees no need for a motion to change the lesson plan. As long as 
school directors can understand this, he feels the lesson plan is adequate. 
 



3 
 

Pam Pope emphasized the need to make any motion concerning this issue very clear. School 
directors need to fully understand their options so there is no question about the firearms 
training. Since she represents the regulatory agency for this program, clarity is most important. 
 
Jeff recommended revising the instructor notes to state it is okay to familiarize students with the 
shotgun or other long guns during combat course segment. This enables school directors to 
familiarize students with shotguns or rifles within the 48 hours of firearms training. 
 
Jeff withdrew his original motion. 
 
Bob stated he would revise the instructor notes. No action was taken on this agenda item. Bob 
will draft the language and then ask Jeff Robinson, Chad Thompson and the Firearms Committee 
to review the revision. 
 
Subject Control/Arrest Techniques 
 
John Combs explained that punches had been added to this lesson plan as a stunning technique. 
Since that revision, he had received questions about allowing a closed fist strike to the head. 
Language has been proposed regarding this option. John mentioned that Joy Strickland had 
suggested moving the punching information to the section on force option, control levels. 
Additional language will be added to this section. 
 
Steve Warren made a motion to add this punching information, including Joy’s recommendation. 
Mack Creson seconded.  
 
Bob asked if the check-off grading sheet would be changed. John stated no. 
 
The motion was approved. 
 
Video List 
 
Bob stated that the current BLET video list contains a number of commercially-produced videos. 
Some of these videos are no longer available. Sammy Turner and Wayne Lamm both 
recommended the Justice Academy produce videos needed for BLET instead of using 
commercial videos. Bob said the Academy’s video staff could probably produce 3 to 4 per year. 
He asked for input from members as to which videos should be produced first.  
 
Bob said that Wayne Lamm recommended the fire extinguisher video be produced. Jeff 
Robinson suggested those videos designated “no longer available.” Steve Warren recommended 
traffic crash.  
 
By consensus, the Committee considered for production: fire extinguisher, traffic crash and those 
“no longer available.” 
 



4 
 

Other Business 
 
Bob stated the handout for drill and ceremony will be included in the January 2011 BLET. Also 
included in the January 2011 BLET will be the check-off sheet for Hazardous Materials. 
 
Legal Counsel’s Report 
 
Joy Strickland had nothing to report. 
 
Criminal Justice Standards Division Report 
 
Mark Dearry reminded members that the School Directors Conference will be held August 5 and 
13. 
 
Sheriffs’ Standards Division Report 
 
No report was submitted. 
 
Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will be held October 15, 2010, at 10 a.m., in Dare County. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 11:25 a.m. 


